
 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

(Constituted under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982) 
 
 

A R Ward 

Solicitor and Honorary Secretary to the Committee 

Eastleigh House,  
Upper Market Street  

Eastleigh,  
Hampshire  SO50 9YN 

Telephone:  023 8068 8000 
Fax No:   023 8068 8122  

 

 
DATE: 9 October 2014 

 
 

Friday, 17 October 2014 - 2pm  
Civic Spitfire Meeting Room,  

Southampton Airport 

 
AGENDA 

 
Prior to the start of the meeting there will be a short session (maximum 15 
minutes in total) giving the opportunity to relevant organisations, whose 
interests are not formally represented by a committee member, to speak.  
Those wishing to participate should telephone the above number in 
advance of the meeting to book a place. 

 
1. Apologies for absence     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 16) 
 
3. Airport Managing Director's Report    (Pages 17 - 24) 
 
4. Member Code of Conduct and Induction pack (DRAFT)  - Richard Ward    (Pages 

25 - 48) 
 
5. Launch of the Hamburg route - Dave Lees     
 
6. Scoping New Business Routes - Dave Lees     
 
7. Airport Development Update - Steve Thurston     
 
8. Noise Action Plan     
 
9. Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement    (Pages 49 - 54) 
 
10. Technical Working Group feedback     
 
11. Date and time of next meeting     
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday, 11 February 2014  (2:05 pm – 3:50 pm) 

 
Councillor Godfrey G Olson  (Chairman) 
Councillor David Airey  (Vice-Chair) 
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary) 
 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Mrs Susan Blatchford Southampton City Council 
Mrs M Finch Bitterne Park Residents' Association 
Councillor Roger Huxstep Hampshire County Council 
Dave Lees Southampton International Airport 
Councillor Sharon Mintoff Southampton City Council 
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association 
Robin Tice Winchester City Council and 

(Winchester Air Group) 
Mr G Wilkinson Southampton Action for Access 
Councillor Anne Winstanley Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
Deputies Present: 
 
Mrs J Smith Bitterne Park Residents' Association 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Patrick Collins Southampton International Airport 
Mike Glen Southampton International Airport 
Karin James Eastleigh Borough Council 
Iain McDermott-Paine Southampton International  Airport 
Francis Okafor Eastleigh Borough Council 
Vicky Parkes Southampton International Airport 
Neil Scott Eastleigh Borough Council 
Tony Wright Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor Colin Davidovitz Hampshire County Council 
Councillor Mrs S Hannen West End Parish Council 
Councillor Ms A Mortimer West End Parish Council 
Gay Roberts Servisair 
Councillor Jan Warwick Winchester City Council 
Mrs Jan Halliday Southampton International Airport 
Steve Brine MP Winchester Parliamentary 

constituency 
John Denham MP Southampton Itchen Parliamentary 

Constituency 
Caroline Nokes MP Romsey and Southampton North 

Parliamentary Constituency 
Mike Thornton MP Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 

 

Alan Whitehead MP Southampton Test Parliamentary 
Constituency 

1. MINUTES OF MEETING TUESDAY, 8 OCTOBER 2013 OF AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the minutes of the meeting of 8 October 2013 be confirmed and signed 
as a true record of the meeting.  
 

2. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
David Lees, Airport Managing Director, presented his report wh9ich had 
previously been circulated with the agenda.   
 
Questions were asked regarding the additional Flybe routes to and from 
Birmingham versus the loss of routes from Southampton to Germany 
particularly as this is such useful link to a major economy, for business, 
tourism and links to our armed forces in Germany.  
 
Mr Lees explained that the economy around the Birmingham area was 
growing and links to Cologne were especially valued.  Currently there were 
insufficient passenger numbers for Southampton to German airports but it 
was hoped it would be possible to re-secure these specific reference was 
given to routes to Munich, Hamburg and Frankfurt.   
 
Mr Lees was congratulated on the improved noise statistics which appeared 
to be a continuing trend.   
 
Mention was made of the adverse effect of APD (Air Passenger Duty) on 
European routes, and recent comments made by Mr Jim French, Chairman of 
Flybe which had reiterated the problem.  Mr Lees agreed the European 
market was hugely competitive however it had been made clear that the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer was not keen to reverse the Government’s 
position on APD.  When considered whether the National Association of 
Airport Consultative Committees might lobby for a reduction the Committee 
were assured this had already been done, and perhaps the next step should 
be to lobby Members of Parliament.  It was noted the local MPs always gave 
their apologies for the Committee’s meetings and the suggestion was made 
that if a future meeting could be held on a Friday there may be more likelihood 
of them attending.  Consideration was to be given to changing the June 2014 
meeting to be held on Friday 13 June and inviting the MPs who might find it 
easier to attend on that day.  
 

3. THE SIR HOWARD DAVIES COMMISSION INTERIM REPORT - DAVE 
LEES 
 
David Lees explained that Sir Howard Davis had been appointed in 2012 to 
lead an independent Airports Commission – ‘A fresh and independent look at 
the UK ‘s future airport capacity needs’.  The Commission had received 52 
proposals and an interim report was published in December 2013, with a final 
report to be published in the Summer 2015. 

2



3 

 

 
Changes since the previous commissions on aviation included: the 
emergence of new business models – Low cost; London Airports all in 
separate private ownership; and Heathrow full, Gatwick operating at 85% of 
capacity. 
 
The key outcomes were: Commission reforecast passenger traffic; Minimal 
scope to redistribute traffic; Short term improvements required - CDM, 
airspace changes & performance based navigation, surface access 
improvements to Airports; and a new runway infrastructure required in London 
& South East by 2030. 
 
Various options were being considered. 
 
Heathrow Option 1 – Heathrow Airport 
A new 3,500m runway constructed to the North West of the existing Airport, 
operational by 2026 at a cost of £17bn with a  capacity of 130m.  There was 
to be a public consultation in Spring 2014. 
 
Heathrow Option 2 – Heathrow Hub Ltd 
An extension to the Northern runway to the West to 6,000m to enable it to be 
operated as 2 runways, lower land take and no greater noise footprint with a 
cost of £7.5bn (2 runways).  
 
Gatwick Airport option 
A new runway to the South of the existing runway, lower noise impact 
compared to LHR Cost £5-7bn.  There was to be a public consultation in 
Spring 2014.  
 
Thames Estuary Airport – Not shortlisted (additional analysis to be 
undertaken) 
New Airport proceeding with this would require closure of Heathrow, London 
City and Southend airports.  Substantial surface access infrastructure 
required in an area where there is a protected habitat and flood risk.  Cost 
£112bn.  Daniel Moylan – Transport advisor to Mayor of London was quoted 
as saying ‘London needs an airport and location that is aligned with forecast 
population growth’. 
 
In terms of any change to Southampton Airport the only implication is the 
possible extension of the runway to include a starter strip to optimise 
European focus.  In answering questions regarding the starter strip Mr Lees 
advised this would increase the length of the runway by less than 10% and 
would optimise the type of aircraft already used.  When asked about the 
timescale and whether it would be possible to include a taxiway to the end of 
the runway Mr Lees advised this would be decided according to business 
need but it would seem optimal to address both needs at the same time.  
 

4. NOISE ACTION PLAN 
 
Patrick Collins advised new information would be supplied and distributed to 
members with the minutes of this meeting. There would not be a new system 
before 2015 and currently evaluation of quiet areas was being undertaken.   

3



4 

 

 
There had been a request from DEFRA to update the current plan which runs 
from 2010 to 2015 and to extend this to run from 2013 to 2018, as the current 
plan was not very old it was considered only minor modifications would be 
required and submitted to DEFRA in mid-March.  The draft proposal would be 
forwarded with these minutes and would require any response from members 
by 28 February 2014.   
 
The minutes of the previous meeting had promised members that the latest 
noise contours would be available at this meeting and these too would be 
forwarded with the minutes of this meeting.   
 

5. THE LONDON LINK AND CHANNEL ISLANDS CAMPAIGN - 
PRESENTATION BY VICKY PARKES, AIRPORT MARKETING MANAGER 
 
Vicky Parkes, Marketing Manager at the Airport, gave a presentation on a 
recent marketing campaign undertaken by the Airport together with Flybe and 
Blue Islands with SWT (£30 return to London Waterloo) which would provide 
links which were particularly beneficial for the Channel Islands. Peppa Pig had 
also been instrumental in the campaign,  with Peppa Pig World at Paultons 
(an extremely popular local tourist attraction) being very accessible from 
Southampton Airport.   Other local tourist attractions identified were the Ageas 
Bowl, Tudor House , Southampton Art Gallery SeaCity, and Beaulieu. 
Various roadshows were taking place: Wednesday 15th January – Jersey 
Road Show; Thursday 16th January – Guernsey Road Show; Media, Travel 
trade and the Public; and an advertising campaign in Channel Islands media 
(October – Feb).  
 
Representatives of these parties had undertaken a flight from the Channel 
Islands to both Gatwick and Southampton Airports and it had been found that 
the times taken were similar but a trip to Southampton including the rail fare 
had worked out £40 cheaper with a lot less hassle – 99 steps between Airport 
and train.  
 
Efforts were to continue with meetings with cruise companies and general 
promotion of links.   
 

6. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Regeneration and 
Planning Policy which summarised the statistics of operational activity at 
Southampton Airport for the September to December period of 2013 provided 
by Southampton Airport in accordance with the Flying Controls Agreement 
between the owners of the airport and the Borough Council. The report also 
compares the figures with those for the previous year. 
 
It was resolved that the report be noted.  

4



5 

 

 
7. GUIDELINES FOR AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEES - VERBAL 

UPDATE RICHARD WARD, HON SECRETARY 
 
Richard Ward gave a presentation on the recent draft ACC Guidelines issued 
by the Department for Transport.  Five key issues were identified: 
Transparency  - Committees should be as open and transparent as possible 
regarding the issues discussed and the conclusions reached; Representative 

- All those significantly affected by or involved in the operation of the 
aerodrome should have access to a representative who can speak on their 
behalf; Independent – It was seen as important that the committees are, and 
perceived to be, independent from the airport in order to maintain the 
confidence of all interested parties; Constructive -  The committee should take 
a constructive role in issues, taking the opportunity to influence matters where 
appropriate; and Knowledgeable - Members need not be experts on every 
subject the committee discusses, but they should have a general 
understanding of the issues involved, whilst having a more in depth 
understanding of the area they are representing. 
 
The sharing of good practice and information between consultative 
committees was strongly encouraged. Committees should determine how this 
was managed in practice. For committees at larger airports, the Liaison Group 
of UK ACCs is an ideal way to do this. At smaller aerodromes sharing best 
practices on an informal ad hoc basis may be more appropriate. Southampton 
Consultative Committee had links with Farnborough Consultative Committee.  
 
Public access to meetings of the committee may be open to the press and the 
public at the discretion of the committee. A balance of transparency and 
confidentiality can be achieved by holding more sensitive meetings in private. 
This is already the case with this Committee.  
 
The aerodrome should have an agreed formal procedure for recording 
complaints about aircraft noise and other impacts of the aerodrome on the 
environment. Once again this is already in practice at Southampton Airport.  
 
In terms of whether SIACCS considered  a Code of Conduct was necessary, it 
was felt that many members were already subject to a Code of Conduct as a 
Councillor and that the professional attitude was already clearly being 
demonstrated. 
 
Members were shown a copy of the proposed response by the UKACCS and 
it was agreed copies of the Draft Paper would be emailed to members after 
the meeting.  Members were requested to send any further comments to 
Richard Ward by Thursday afternoon 13 February as the response letter was 
being forwarded by UKACCS on Friday 14 February.  
 

8. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK 
 
Mike Glenn presented the minutes of the last Technical Working Group 
(attached to these minutes).  Previous questions regarding the Trislander and 
its possible replacement were addressed.  The Dornier 228 an eighteen 

5



6 

 

seater turbo prop aircraft had been ordered as the Trislander’s replacement 
and would be expected to adhere to the preferred routes. 
 
Fuel savings from aircraft taxiing on one engine as opposed to two had not 
yet been assessed and may be seen as commercially sensitive but as and 
when figures were available they would be provided to the Committee.  
 
With regard to proposed air space changes, The consultation closed on 31 
January 2014.  An overview of the consultation took place in the press, on 
radio and television, aviation websites, in various parishes throughout the 
New Forest, at drop in sessions at the Airport and 130 Stakeholders had been 
consulted culminating in 20/25 responses.  The Committee requested to be 
shown a copy of the report once finalised and available. 
 
The Committee noted the minutes.  
 

9. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The date and time of the next meeting was likely to be Friday 13 June at the 
Airport.  Members would be advised of this change of date once 
arrangements had been finalised. 
 
M5172 

6



1 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE 
COMMITTEE 

 
Friday, 27 June 2014  (2:00 pm – 4:00 pm) 

 
Councillor Godfrey G Olson  (Chairman) 
Councillor David Airey  (Vice-Chair) 
Richard Ward  (Hon Secretary) 
 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Geoff Harris Bishopstoke Parish Council 
Councillor Roger Huxstep Hampshire County Council 
Councillor Sharon Mintoff Southampton City Council 
Diane Sebon Townhill Park Residents Association 
Mrs J Smith Bitterne Park Residents' Association 
Robin Tice Winchester City Council and 

(Winchester Air Group) 
Councillor Jan Warwick Winchester City Council 
Mr G Wilkinson Southampton Action for Access 
Mike Thornton MP Eastleigh Parliamentary Constituency 
 
Deputies Present: 
 
Louis Slack Southampton Action for Access 
Dr Keith Smith Winchester City Council (Winchester 

Air Group) 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Patrick Collins Southampton International Airport 
Mrs Jan Halliday Southampton International Airport 
Karin James Eastleigh Borough Council 
Iain McDermott-Paine Southampton International  Airport 
Neil Scott Eastleigh Borough Council 
Steve Thurston Southampton International Airport 
Tony Wright Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
Apologies: 
 
Councillor J S Neal Test Valley Borough Council 
Gay Roberts Servisair 
Steve Brine MP Winchester Parliamentary 

constituency 
John Denham MP Southampton Itchen Parliamentary 

Constituency 
Caroline Nokes MP Romsey and Southampton North 

Parliamentary Constituency 
Alan Whitehead MP Southampton Test Parliamentary 

Constituency 
 

7



2 

 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR FOR 2014/15 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Godfrey Olson be elected as Chairman of the Committee for 2014-
2015. 
 
 

2. ELECTION OF VICE CHAIR FOR 2014/15 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That David Airey be elected as Vice Chairman of the Committee for 2014-
2015. 
 
 

3. APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY SECRETARY 2014/15 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That Richard Ward be appointed as Hon Secretary of the Committee for 
2014-2015. 
 
 

4. MARY FINCH 
 
The Chair made the sad announcement of the recent death of Mary Finch 
who had served on the Committee for over twenty years, making a very 
valuable contribution to the business of the Committee.   
 
Members requested a letter of condolence should be sent to both the Bitterne 
Park Residents Association and her family.  
 
All those present stood in silence for one minute as a mark of respect to Mrs 
Finch. 
 

5. NEW AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE GUIDELINES - RICHARD 
WARD 
 
Members requested Agenda item 15 be taken as item 4. 
 
Richard Ward gave a verbal update on the new DfT Guidelines for Airport 
Consultative Committees previously circulated with the agenda. He 
highlighted that these were merely guidelines, and Airport Consultative 
Committees come in all types and sizes.   Generally it appeared that the 
Southampton Airport Consultative Committee adhered to the suggested 
guidelines.  It had been proposed that a new code of conduct should be 
adopted by consultative committees to help members understand their role 
and account for their actions, and Mr Ward proposed he should bring a 
suggested draft of such a code to the next meeting. He also suggested a 
member induction pack might be given to new members.  Both suggestions 
were accepted by members.   

8



3 

 

 
Another suggestion was that Committees should involve themselves more in 
consumer complaints to airports. Page 41 of the DfT document gave ideas of 
specific items which Consultative Committees might wish to discuss.  This 
included updates from airport management, noise and track keeping, updates 
from local authorities on local plans that might impact on the airport, 
community noise and local air quality monitoring, passenger service issues, 
noise insulation schemes, surface access, airport developments, airspace 
changes, noise action plans, responding to consultations, community 
initiatives, updates from sub groups.  Many of these items were already 
regular items on the agenda at Southampton Airport Consultative Committee.   
 
A question was posed as to why the Mansbridge Residents Association did 
not have representation on the Committee.  Mr Ward advised they had never 
requested such representation but all representatons received were given 
consideration and should be addressed to him.  
 
(at this point Mike Thornton MP was welcomed to the meeting).  
 

6. AIRPORT MANAGING DIRECTOR'S REPORT 
 
David Lees presented his report previously circulated with the agenda.   
 
Members congratulated Mr Lees on his appointment to the Local Economic 
Partnership (LEP) and thanked him for a very positive report.  They expressed 
their congratulations to the staff highlighted in the report.   
 
Turning to the new routes members were pleased to note the new route to 
Hamburg and asked how this was to be publicised.  Also in view of recent 
reductions by Flybe members asked if new airlines could be approached to 
give routes to other possible venues such as Venice, Cork and Copenhagen.   
 
Jan Halliday advised the biggest growth was in routes to Guernsey which now 
more popular than routes to Jersey, passengers were equally spread across 
business and leisure.  
 

7. NOISE ACTION PLAN INCLUDING CONTOURS - PATRICK COLLINS 
 
Patrick Collins gave an update on the recent consultation which had been 
submitted in March 2014.  Four observations had been highlighted and the 
report was re-submitted in May.  The next step was to submit the report to the 
Secretary of State.  
 
Mr Collins also showed a map of the noise contours and gave an explanation 
of how these were measured.  There had been a 5.3% drop in movements. 
 

8. AIRPORT DEVELOPMENTS - STEVE THURSTON 
 
Steve Thurston gave a presentation on Airport Developments.  
 
In 2014 there were to be £4.4m of developments which included: 
 

9



4 

 

Stand walkways: - The risk of trips and falls had been identified in some of the 
block paving, and repairs to this together with new paint making it easier for 
passengers to instantly recognise the routes had been undertaken.  
 
Fire Training Rig: - This was to be replaced due to its age and condition and 
the rig would now be scalable to meet different aircraft types.  LPG was to be 
added to reduce kerosene use.  
 
Approach Lighting Replacements: - was being undertaken to give additional 
electrical safety and improve maintainability.  Replacing masts with hinged 
ones and re-routing cables underground. 
 
Departure Lounge: - Different style seating was to be installed and some 
carpeted areas together with additional capacity gained by moving check in 
areas back.  
 
Airport Hotel Development: - The 1 acre ‘pig farm’ site on the edge of the 
airport gave good access to public transport and would enhance the Airport 
offer.  It would also create 40 new jobs.  This development would form part of 
the strategy to jointly develop Fords, The Airport and Riverside.  Consultation 
was underway with Eastleigh Borough Council, Hampshire Highways, 
Network Rail and the University.  A pre-application was to be submitted in 
July/August with a full application later in 2014.   
 
A Solar Farm: - a 20 acre site at the Airport had been identified and would be 
capable of generating 5mw of electricity.  Construction was proposed to start 
in quarter 4 of 2014 with completion in the first quarter of 2015.  This was still 
subject to confirmation of a connection by Scottish and Southern Electricity.  
 
Members requested that the presentation be attached and circulated with the 
minutes.   
 
 

9. AIRSPACE CONSULTATION UPDATE - IAIN MCDERMOTT PAINE 
 
Speaking about runway O2 approach from Southampton Iain McDermott 
Paine explained that the satellite beacon VOR belonging to NATS would be 
decommissioned in 2016, and therefore it was essential to find straight line 
line up, a system similar to satellite navigation.  Air space proposals would be 
proposed in May to January and analysis would take place in February and 
March and publicised in April. 
 
Option A had been identified as the preferred approach.  A report was 
published in April and flight testing of procedures had taken place and gone to 
the CAA for approval.  The CAA would make the final decision and at that 
time a timescale would be identified.   
 

10. AIRPORTS COMMISSION - CALL FOR EVIDENCE - DISCUSSION PAPER: 
UTILISATION OF THE UK'S EXISTING AIRPORTS CAPACITY 
 
The deadline for a response to this paper was 25 July 2014.  At the National 
Conference individual airports had been encouraged to respond.  Better east 

10



5 

 

west routes and enhanced transport links were required.  Discussion had also 
included whether APD could be relaxed for new routes.   
 
Mike Thornton stated he could see no EU movement to change APD. 
 
Members agreed the Committee should make a response, suggested 
improved access to the east eg Brighton.  Passenger experience was the key.   
 

11. FARNBOROUGH AIRSPACE CHANGE PROPOSAL 
 
TAG Farnborough were looking to formalise their airspace by creating a 
greater amount of controlled air space.  Parish Councils, The Winchester Air 
Group and local glider clubs had been consulted.   
 
Dave Ingram from Winchester City Council advised the Committee that 
Winchester residents had been consulted focussing on aircraft leaving the 
airport to the north of the A31 corridor.  Various pockets of airspace were 
required in controlled airspace.  Sectors had been identified as below 4000 
feet, between 4000 and 7000 feet and heights above that.   
 
Aircraft leaving Farnborough would enter the Winchester District at 5000 feet.  
The worst case scenario was 42 more movements a day between 0600 and 
2200, most of these would be private aircraft.  The impact on the ground 
would depend on ambient noise levels.  The Department of Transport 
guidance was that aircraft flying at between 4000-7000 feet should avoid 
ground populated sites.  In excess of 7000 feet could fly over to save fuel.  
 
Areas particularly affected would be Alresford and Ropley, and Winchester 
City Council had been given a seat on the TAG Consultative Committee.   
 
Mr Tice commented that Farnborough had picked up on a policy to route 
aircraft on a set departure route something Southampton doesn’t do.  
Government policy was in his view that aircraft should be routed along set 
routes and yet he felt at Southampton they could go anywhere.  Iain 
McDermott Paine explained that Farnborough were establishing controlled 
airspace not making changes.  Noise preferred routings were required to go to 
consultation and were approved the Technical Working Group had looked at 
this.  Dr Smith Mr Tice’s Deputy showed a map where aircraft were routed 
over populated areas at 2000 feet. 
 
Tony Wright of Eastleigh Borough Council confirmed the consultation on 
Farnborough Airspace and confirmed that Eastleigh Borough Council, 
Winchester City Council and the Airport had responded.   
 

12. MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT - TONY 
WRIGHT 
 
Tony Wright presented his report which summarised the statistics of 
operational activity at Southampton Airport for the January to April period of 
2014 provided by Southampton Airport in accordance with the Flying Controls 
Agreement between the owners of the airport and the Borough Council. The 
report also compares the figures with those for the previous year. 

11



6 

 

 
The summary of airport operational activity for the January to April period of 
2014 was noted.  
 

13. ROUTINGS OVER WINCHESTER - WCC/WAG 
 
Dr Smith of the Winchester Air Group requested he be permitted to present a 
paper.  The Chairman advised that it was not usually permitted for the deputy 
to present when the member was in attendance, but on this occasion he was 
prepared to make an exception.  
 
Dr Smith’s paper is attached to these minutes.   
 
The Committee acknowledged Dr Smith’s views but did not accept or debate  
them.  It was agreed to refer this matter to the Technical Working Group.  
 

14. TECHNICAL WORKING GROUP FEEDBACK 
 
Iain McDermott Paine presented the minutes of the last Technical Working 
Group and commented that the Boeing 717 was being used on the route to 
Palma, the Dash Q400 was also taking a high number of flights.  Following 
questions from Mr Tice, Mr McDermott Paine agreed to talk through the 
findings with him.  
 
Mr Tice expressed the view that it would have been better to include the 
Winchester Loop in the TAG proposal but Mr McDermott Paine explained this 
was a totally separate consultation.  
 

15. FEEDBACK FROM UKACCS CONFERENCE JUNE 2014 - RICHARD 
WARD/DAVID AIREY 
 
David Airey who had attended the National Conference reported back to the 
Committee.  He conveyed the good wishes of the conference to Tony and 
Sylvia Balcombe which the Chair agreed to pass on.  
 
There had been an airside tour of Gatwick for delegates of the conference 
which culminated in a demonstration of the very latest, very high tech 
equipment by the Gatwick Fire Service. 
 
The business side of the conference had covered:  

• Airports Commission Interim report – the use of existing airport 
capacity being a keenly discussed item.  

• Regional services at London’s airports – the DfT was due to consult on 
State Aid Guidance this Summer.  Regional connectivity was a major 
concern for many airports, especially those that have traditionally had 
direct links to Gatwick and Heathrow.  

• The CAA’s Future Airspace Strategy 

• New DfT Guidance for Airport Consultative Committees.  Amongst 
issued discussed were managing the size of ACCs, support for the 
Code of Conduct, whether or not to hold the meetings in public, public 
participation, independence of the committees, the passenger 

12



7 

 

experience and the way passenger interests were considered.  The 
Hon Secretary and Councillor Airey had one or two suggestions to 
make which they intended to discuss with the Chair before developing 
them and bringing them forward for the full Committee to discuss.  In 
particular, as examples these would be about engaging the travel 
trade and having a greater input from businesses, the passenger 
experience and getting an understanding of complaints (other than 
noise and not becoming an arbiter in any way.   

• The decision to cease membership of Durham Tees Valley, its 
numbers having fallen below the threshold for membership. 

 
Next year Manchester would be hosting the event.   
 

16. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
The Chair thanked Mike Thornton MP for attending the meeting. 
 
The next meeting would be held at the Airport at 2pm on Friday 17 October 
2014. 
 
M5256 

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



Minute Item 13

915



1016



1 

 

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Managing Director’s Report 

October 2014 

 
1. Total Passenger Numbers – May to August 2014 

Between May and August 2014, Southampton Airport welcomed 735,926 passengers – a 4.6% increase 
on the previous year.  This contributes to a total of 1,214,809 passengers for 2014 so far.  

 

 

2014 2013 

Jan 95,791 88,205 

Feb 105,805 100,776 

Mar 129,115 124,489 

Apr 148,172 136,765 

May 166,510 157,691 

Jun 176,392 169,317 

Jul 192,353 188,780 

Aug 200,671 195,225 

Sep - 174,167 

Oct - 145,813 

Nov - 125,950 

Dec - 115,811 

Total 1,214,809 1,722,989 

% change 4.6% 1.7% 

Agenda Item 3

17



2 

2. Total Aircraft Movements - May to August 2014 

Total Aircraft Movements include: Passenger and Cargo Flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, 
General Aviation, Military, Air Taxi and Positioning Flights. 

 
 

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Total 
% 
change 

2014 2660 2566 2973 3328 3715 3795 4017 3881 26935   

2013 2835 2821 3236 3350 3684 3666 3987 3945 27524 -2.1% 

3. Airport & Airline News 

Hamburg Launch Events 

Several launch events are planned for the first flight from 
Southampton Airport to Hamburg.  To coincide with the inaugural 
flight the airport will be holding an afternoon tea with speeches 
from the Mayors of Southampton and Eastleigh. Eastleigh College 
have been tasked with creating a giant gingerbread house for the 
occasion and local university students will be playing Brahms to 
entertain the passengers.  The airport has also organised a visit 
from German travel trade to Hampshire, a visit for key Hampshire 
statekholders and media to visit the Hamburg Aviation Cluster 
plus a travel trade and media event with VisitEngland at the British Consul in Hamburg. 

Flybe launches FlyShuttle Service – new flights to Leeds & Aberdeen 
Flybe has announced a new FlyShuttle service that, with effect from 26th October 2014, gives 
customers the opportunity to travel all the way from Jersey to Aberdeen on one flight, with brief stops 
at Southampton and Leeds. It is a ‘hop-on, hop off’ service that will operate three times a day both 
northbound and southbound. 

To satisfy customer demand, it re-instates both Flybe’s Southampton to Leeds service and adds a fifth 
daily flight, the popular 0700 departure, from Jersey to Southampton.  It also provides Southampton 
customers with convenient daily flights to and from Aberdeen and, southbound, supports the cruise-
ship sector through providing regular flights for those taking cruises from Southampton.   

18



3 

 

 
Blue Islands increase Guernsey flights 
 
Blue Islands has increased the number of flights between Southampton and Guernsey, to up to eight 
per day. The move is in response to passenger demand, as more Guernsey residents are choosing to fly 
to Southampton as their preferred route in to central London, together with a growth in both leisure 
and business visitors flying to Guernsey from Southampton.   
 
This fourth return flight brings a further 40,000 seats to the market bringing Blue Islands’ total capacity 
to 170,000.  The extra Blue Islands flights come as the preference to fly to Southampton grows, while 
passenger numbers for Gatwick continue to decline. In May, 5,104 fewer passengers used services 
between Guernsey and Gatwick, a drop of 16% from May 2013, whereas Southampton services enjoyed 
a 44% year on year increase with 5,276 extra passengers. 
 
Flybe announces temporary changes to its Guernsey – Southampton schedule 
  
In recent months Flybe have been experiencing unacceptable economic returns on the Guernsey - 
Southampton route route due to the significant number of increased services; total supply is no longer 
aligned with total demand. 
 
From 2nd October to 25th October, Flybe will operate a twice daily service on Saturdays and Sundays.  
During this time the weekday service will be temporarily suspended.  The weekday service will be 
restored to one a day effective from 26th October, with one service on Saturdays and two on Sundays.  
 
Southampton Airport celebrates launch of ski season 
 
Passengers were treated to a special event to mark 
the launch of the 2014/15 ski season in September. 
Those travelling through the terminal were invited to 
pose for ‘selfies’ in the snowy photo booth, take away 
goodie bags, find out about the extensive ski holidays 
available from the airport and chat to experts about 
ski equipment and technique. Teams from Inghams, 
the Alpine Snowsports Centre and Skiplex were on 
hand. Passengers also had the chance to win a ski 
holiday for two and sample a taste of Jägermeister 
from World Duty Free.  With flights to Andorra, 
Grenoble, Innsbruck, Chambery, Salzburg and Geneva, 
a range of resorts and runs for all levels are just a 
short hop away.  Customers can choose to put together their own ski experience with flights from 
Flybe, or book a package with Inghams, Neilson, Esprit Ski or Ski Total. 
 
Successful Summer at Southampton Airport 
 
Southampton Airport has just experienced its busiest summer in seven years.  An impressive 192,353 
passengers travelled through the airport in July 2014 – a 1.9% increase on July last year and the largest 
number since 2007. There were more than 200,000 passengers through the doors in August – the 
highest number in a single month since August 2007 and representing a 3% increase in passengers over 
2013.  The route with the largest growth, year on year, was Guernsey with an increase of 53% more 
passengers in August. 
 

19



4 

 

Southampton Airport scores highly in Which? UK Airports survey 
 
Southampton Airport has received a Which? Recommended Provider accolade in the consumer 
champion’s latest UK airports survey. The survey found that smaller airports are, on average, providing 
a better experience than larger ones and Southampton made it into the top six airports in the UK.  
 
Over 7,000 Which? members were asked to complete the survey about their experiences of flying from 
and to an airport in the UK. Southampton Airport achieved a full five star rating in seven of the ten 
categories*, including baggage reclaim and distance to boarding gate – common frustrations for UK 
travellers.  
 
Southampton Airport leads business delegation to France 

 
Southampton Airport led a group of businesses from 
Hampshire to Bergerac in France to forge closer links 
with businesses, residents and ex-pats in the Dordogne 
region.  In the winter months, the Southampton Airport 
connection is one of only two routes from Bergerac to 
the UK, so the group were promoting the easy links to 
the rest of the UK via the Flybe hub, rail services and 
motorways.  
 

The Dordogne region is very popular with the British and many people have second homes in the 
region.  There are 28,350 permanent British ex-pats living in the area and around 6,500 second homes. 
Joining Southampton Airport were the Port of Southampton, South West Trains, Hampshire Chamber 
of Commerce, Flybe, Hampshire Top Attractions, Business South, Destination Southampton and the 
Southampton and Region Hotel Association.  
 
Airport team hits London Waterloo 
 
Southampton Airport and South West Trains joined forces to promote 
their quick and easy rail-to-air links with a special roadshow at London 
Waterloo station in June.  The team visited the UK’s busiest railway 
station to talk to passengers about the ease in which they can travel 
between London and Southampton Airport.  South West Trains offers 
around 50 train services every day between London and Southampton 
Airport Parkway station, which is just 99 steps away from the airport’s 
terminal building.  
 
South West Trains and Southampton Airport created a special joint rail-
air ticket offering train travel between Southampton Airport and 
London Waterloo for just £30 return, for passengers flying with airlines 
Flybe or Blue Islands. The train journey takes just 68 minutes.  
 
 
4. Management & Staff 
 

Breeze Through Awards – May to August 2014 
At Southampton Airport we pride ourselves on helping make our passengers’ journey as easy as 
possible. Our Breeze Through Awards recognise and reward those staff who go the extra mile.  
 
May 2014: Jenny Woods & Andy Dent 
Jenny Woods and Andy Dent from the Commercial Team won this award for their involvement in the 
changeover of the catering suppliers. Both have been nominated for going above and beyond the call 

20



5 

 

of duty, particularly for working through the night whilst the physical changeover took place to both 
Costa outlets, The Globe and The Olive Tree. The months of work prior to this, in getting everything 
organised, has also been acknowledged by their colleagues. 
 
June 2014: Chris Hoff & Shirley Cuppelditch (Swissport) 
In June, a passenger presented himself at Border Control with no passport, and it looked likely that the 
passenger had disposed of it down the aircraft toilet. Chris Hoff (Ramp Supervisor) and Shirley 
Cuppelditch (Ramp Leading Hand), from Swissport, emptied the toilet cart to see if they could find the 
passport. They managed fish out most of the photo page which was then passed onto Special Branch. 
Chris and Shirley certainly went above and beyond their jobs to assist Special Branch and Border Force 
to identify the passenger! 
 
July 2014: John Sheldrake (Balfour Beatty) 
John was nominated for a specific occasion where he was seen helping an elderly lady from the car 
park to the terminal with her bags and putting her mind at ease as he escorted her through. This act of 
kindness was supported with other nominations for his overall manner, always willing to help 
Southampton Airport wherever he can and being the man to rely on. 
 
August 2014: Mark Collings (Swissport) 
In August, a flight from Faro was diverted to Bournemouth and the passengers were transferred by 
coach to Southampton. The passengers didn’t arrive until 1:15am and Mark, in his capacity as Duty 
Manager, stayed to ensure all passengers were alright. Around 1:45am he went to the car park to go 
home after a long shift and he noticed a passenger having trouble starting their car. Mark got his car 
and jump leads and started the car, enabling the passenger to get on his way within a few minutes, 
great customer service!   
 
5. Noise 
 
Thirty-six complaints were recorded between May and August 2014. Refer to Appedix A for more 
information. 
 
6. Vortex 
 
There were no reported occurrences of vortex damage between May and August 2014. 
 

7. Community and charity 
 
Gordon-Keeble Cars return to Southampton Airport for 50th Anniversary 

 
A fleet of rare Gordon-Keeble Cars returned to their ‘birthplace’ to 
celebrate 50 years since production of the car started in 1964.  Built at 
Southampton Airport, in the building also famous for the production of 
the early Spitfire aircraft, the cars were manufactured there until 1966.   
 
Forty-nine cars from around the world assembled in chassis order on the 
top floor of the airport’s car park - the building on the site of the previous 
factory – and drove in formation through Spitfire Loop in front of the 
airport’s terminal. The cars continued their celebrations by visiting 
Beaulieu, Southampton Civic Centre, Winchester and Eastleigh High Street 
– including a drive along the fabled Jim Keeble test route where Jim 
personally tested each car at 140mph.  
 

21



6 

 

School competition winners enjoy VIP tour of Southampton Airport 
 
Three lucky children from schools in Hampshire were treated to a special behind-the-scenes tour at 
Southampton Airport during the summer holidays. The children, Ralph Shepperd (7), Fallon James (9) 
and Hannah Scott (13), were all winners of the airport’s recent Schools Competition – where kids were 
asked to design a poster of their favourite place in 
Hampshire or the Isle of Wight.    
 
Children were asked to think about your favourite things to 
do with the family and the best places to visit - from the 
county’s wildest attractions, the most fun parks, the 
pebbliest beaches, the greatest activity centres, or simply 
the undiscovered places where they live. The competition 
was open to all schools in Hampshire and the Isle of 
Wight, and it attracted over 300 entries across three age 
categories.  
 
Pavilion on the Park opens new activity building with support from Southampton Airport 

 
Eastleigh’s Pavilion on the Park, which was awarded a special grant 
from the Southampton Airport Big Idea Community Fund, has 
opened a new outdoor activity building.  The 4all Hangar provides 
storage for specialist cycles and a focal point for developing work 
skills, independent living skills and recreation & leisure experiences  
 
The new hangar aims to improve engagement with the park, 
placing an emphasis on inclusivity and opportunity for everyone.  
The new facilities are designed encourage adventurous, challenging 
and inspiring activities, engage families in sustainable living and 

provide facilities to help those with challenging lives integrate with the community.  Building work 
began in February this year after the Big Idea £50,000 grant was awarded and the 4allHangar was 
opened by The Worshipful the Mayor of the Borough of Eastleigh, Councillor Tony Noyce. 
 
Eye Care Charity Orbis and Southampton Airport team up to raise funds for Vision for Ethiopia  
 
Southampton Airport is throwing its support behind the international sight-saving charity Orbis and 
their Vision for Ethiopia appeal in time for World Sight Day on the 9th October. The appeal is raising 
money to help those suffering from preventable blinding conditions in the country, which has one of 
the highest rates of vision loss in the world.  
 
Southampton Airport has been supporting Orbis and their Flying Eye Hospital - a unique teaching 
facility complete with operating and lecture theatre, which trains eye care teams in the developing 
world - through a coin collection globe, that in just one year has raised a fantastic £2,404.  
 

22



7 

 

8. Online & Social Media 
 

Twitter 
The account has reached over 22,385 followers and has proved invaluable for providing instant updates 
in times of disruption, is followed by local media and is being used as a customer services tool.  To 
follow the airport, go to www.twitter.com/sou_airport  
 
Facebook 
Our Facebook page continues to grow and our engagement with fans is significantly higher than most 
other regional airports. Through competitions, surveys and photo sharing the number of ‘likes’ now sits 
at over 4,158. www.facebook.com/sou.airport  
 
YouTube 
Our YouTube account features a range of videos of the airport, our airlines, visiting aircraft and 
passenger assistance features. The current amount of views is 17,981. www.youtube.com/SOUAirport  
 

23



8 

 

 
 

Appendix A: Noise & Complaints Summary 
Supporting statistics 

 
 

Noise Complaints 
During May to August 2014, the comparison between years 2012/2013/2014 is as follows: 

 
2012   2013   2014       
   

May     6    7    5 
Jun      4    4    10 
Jul     10    29    14 
Aug     26    15    7  
Total     46    55    36 
        

 
Complaints by Household 

The total number of individual complaining households for the period May to August is as follows: 
  
2012   2013  2014    

      35    41    28 
     
 
 

Continuing downward trend in complaint numbers with a clear spike during the good weather 
experienced in June and July. More complaints noted from Hythe and South areas due to shift in 
Wind leading to more arrivals on runway 02 than usual.  
 
Average response time is 1.62 days with 50% responded within 1 day. 
 
3 noise preferred routing deviations. Operators identified and written to and corrective measures 
implemented 
 
1 complaint about the Lancaster arriving prior to D-Day celebrations in France 
 
1 complaint from the Reading area about flights at 9000ft+ 

24



 

 

 

 

 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL 

AIRPORT 

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  

 

MEMBERS INDUCTION PACK  

 

(2014) 

 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

25



-2- 
 26



-3- 
 

INDUCTION PACK FOR AIRPORT 

 

 

Content: Page number(s) 

Purpose of Consultative Committees  5 

Meetings 7 

Useful telephone numbers and who to contact 7 

Constitution 9 - 11 

Membership 12 - 16 

Code of Conduct  17 

Appendix 1 Flying Controls Agreement and 

Technical Working Group 

19-21 

Appendix 2 Glossary of Terms 21-22 

Code of Conduct to be signed and returned  

to Hon Secretary 

24 

 

27



-4- 
 28



-5- 
 

What are Airport Consultative Committees?  

ACCs are structured forums that provide an opportunity for the exchange of 

information between aerodromes and interested parties. They make 

recommendations to the aerodrome management and other bodies when 

appropriate as well as being a place where there is an opportunity to reach common 

understanding between interested groups about the nature of the aerodrome 

operation in the hope that issues can be resolved amicably.  

The Role of Committees  

Committees are made up of representatives from the three users of the airport, 

local authorities in the vicinity of the airport and other organisations from the 

community surrounding the airport that have an interest in the operations and 

management of the airport.  

They should promote greater understanding both to the surrounding community 

about airport operations and to the airport operator about the impact of those airport 

operations and any proposed operations. Topics discussed at meetings can vary 

widely, but often include environmental issues, airport development, updates on 

airport operations, an overview of any passenger service issues and surface access.  

The nature of consultative committees and, indeed, of "adequate facilities for 

consultation" will depend upon the type and scale of the aerodrome and is likely to 

be site specific.  

Committees should recognise the wider role of the airport as an important local 

employer and influential driver in the local economy, as well as considering the 

local environmental impacts of an airport, including noise.
4 

They can also play a 

vital role in protecting and enhancing the passenger experience at airports.  

While committees are not dispute resolution forums and they do not have any 

executive or decision-making power over the aerodrome, they can facilitate 

constructive discussion and help resolve differences while maintaining an overview 

of trends. They also do not prevent interested parties from raising concerns directly 

with the airport.  

Although the committees do not have any executive power, they should be holding 

airports to account by monitoring the implementation of commitments made by the 

airport and challenging their performance when necessary. For example, the 

Government expects committees to monitor the implementation of airports’ 

commitments made under statutory Noise Action Plans, where relevant. They also 

have a role in protecting and enhancing facilities for passengers.  

 

(extract from the Civil Aviation Authority Guidelines 2014) 

29



-6- 
 

 

30



-7- 
 

FREQUENCY OF MEETINGS 

 

Meetings of Southampton Airport Consultative Committee are held three times 

a year  

 

Usually held on the second Friday of February, June and October.   

 

The AGM is held in June and the first item on the agenda is the election of the Chair 

and Vice Chair. The second item is always the appointment of the Honorary 

Secretary.   

 

Meetings are usually held at Southampton Airport in the Spitfire meeting room.   

 

 

USEFUL TELEPHONE NUMBERS/EMAIL ADDRESSES:  

 

Karin James, Assistant to the Hon Secretary 

02380 688113 or 07920456264 

Karin.james@eastleigh.gov.uk  

 

Richard Ward, Hon Secretary  

02380 688103 

Richard.ward@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 

Godfrey Olson, Chairman  

02380270074 

Godfrey.olson@eastleigh.gov.uk  

 

David Airey, Vice Chairman 

02380 455733 

David.airey@eastleigh.gov.uk  

 

David Lees, Managing Director, Southampton International Airport 

02380 627170 

David_Lees@Southamptonairport.com  

31



-8- 
 32



-9- 
 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

CONSTITUTION   
 

Name 
 
1. The name of the Committee is the Southampton International Airport 

Consultative Committee. 
 
Purpose 
 
2. The purpose of the Committee is to act as a means of consultation in relation 

to Southampton International Airport Limited in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982 or any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof. 

 
Membership 
 
3. The airport operator shall always be represented on the Committee by one 

member and must be represented at all meetings of the Committee. 
 
4. The membership of the Committee, including the airport operator, shall not 

exceed 26 members. 
 
5. The membership shall be drawn from airport users, local authorities and other 

organisations representing the interests of persons concerned with the locality 
of the airport in the proportions given at Schedule 1. 

 
6. The current approved membership is shown at Schedule 2, and may from 

time to time be revised provided that it remains in conformity with Schedule 1. 
 
7. The members of the Committee shall be appointed by the bodies or 

organisations named in Schedule 2 hereto who shall be entitled to appoint the 
number of members set opposite their name in the said Schedule. 

 
8. The bodies or organisations represented shall be entitled to appoint a deputy 

for each of their members and such deputy shall be entitled to attend 
meetings of the Committee in the event of the appointed member being 
unable to attend and such deputy shall be entitled to act in the same manner 
as if he were the duly accredited delegate. 

 
9. Members appointed shall hold office for a period of three years. 
 
10. A member appointed by a body or organisation named in Schedule 2 who 

ceases to be a member or officer of that body or organisation shall thereupon 
cease to be a member of the Committee. 

 

33



-10- 
 

11. On the death, resignation or other cessation of membership of a member, the 
body or organisation by who such member was appointed shall appoint a 
further representative to serve for the balance of the period of office of the 
original member. 

 
12. The Committee shall have power in special circumstances and for specific 

purposes to co-opt additional members not exceeding three in number to 
serve for such period or periods as the Committee may determine. 

 
13. Any member representing the airport operation or a local authority named in 

Schedule 2 hereto may be accompanied by an officer or other advisers but 
any such officer or adviser shall not have power to vote. 

 
14 Any organisation failing to send a representative to three consecutive 

meetings may have their membership disqualified. 
 
Meetings 
 
15. The Committee shall meet not less than three times in each calendar year at 

such times as the Committee or the Chairman may from time to time decide. 
 
Officials 
 
16. On an annual basis the Committee shall appoint a person to act as its 

Secretary in the forthcoming year and shall elect one of the members of the 
Committee to be its Chairman and another member to be its Vice-Chairman 
for the like period. 

 
17 It shall be the duty of the Secretary: 
 

(i) issue notices of meetings of the Committee to the members thereof 
and to place on the agenda for such meetings such matters which are 
proper for the Committee to consider and which he is reasonably 
required to do by members of the Committee; 

 
(ii) to prepare minutes of the meetings of the Committee and to distribute 

the same to the members thereof; and 
 

(iii) take such action as is appropriate to give effect to the decisions of the 
Committee. 

 
Expenses 
 
18. The expenses incurred by the Committee shall be met in such way as the 

Committee (with the consent of the appointing body or organisation) may 
lawfully determine. 

34



-11- 
 

 
 
Alterations to the constitution 
 
19. Alterations to this Constitution shall only be made by the Committee with the 

consent of the airport operator and where not less than 16 members have 
formally signified their acceptance of the alteration. 

 
(June 2012) 

 
 
 

35



-12- 
 

MEMBERSHIP CATEGORIES 
 

Category Maximum representation Category total 

Local Authorities   

County Councils 2  

District/Unitary Councils 9 11 
 

Community Interests   

Trades Councils 1  

Chambers of Commerce 1  

Tourism South East  1  

Parish Councils/Residents 
Associations  

5 8 

Airport Users   

Airport Organisations  3  

Passenger Interests 3 6 
 

Airport Operator 1 1  
 

 
Total membership  

  
26 

 

36



-13- 
 

SCHEDULE 2 
 

PROPOSED MEMBERSHIP  
 

Local Authorities    Members 
     
County Council  Hampshire County Council   2 
     
District/Unitary Councils:  Eastleigh Borough Council 

Southampton City Council 
Test Valley Borough Council 
Winchester City Council 
 

  3 
 3 
 1 
 2 

 
     
Community Interests     
     
Trades Councils:  Winchester and District Trades Union 

Council 
  1 

     
Chambers of Commerce:  Southampton and Fareham Chamber of 

Commerce and Industry 
  1 

     
Business Community  Tourism South East 

 
  1 

Parish Councils/Residents 
Associations 

 Bishopstoke Parish Council 
West End Parish Council  
Bitterne Park Residents Association 
Townhill Park Residents Association 

 1 
1 
1 
1 

     
Airport Users     
     
Airport Organisations:  Flybe 

Servisair 
National Air Traffic Services 

  1 
 1 

1 
     
Passenger Interests:  Hampshire Economic Partnership 

Southampton Action for Access  
South West Trains 

  1 
 1 

1 
     
Airport Operator   Southampton International Airport Ltd   1 
     
Co-optees    3 

 

 

 

37



-14- 
 38



-15- 
 

MEMBERSHIP 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 MEMBERSHIP as at June 2014 

(Deputies shown where appointments have been made ) 

Hampshire County Council (2) 

 

Cllr Roger Huxstep  
Cllr Colin  Davidovitz 
Deputies:(HCC don’t appoint deputies) 

Tourism South East (1) 

 

Replacement required 

 

Southampton City Council (3) 

 

Cllr Royston Smith   
Cllr Steven Barnes Andrews    
Cllr Sharon Mintoff   
Deputies:   Cllr Paul Lewzey 

Bitterne Park Residents' Association 

(1) 

 

Mrs Joan Smith 

Deputy: Mr M Smith  

Eastleigh Borough Council (3) 

 

Cllr David Airey  
Cllr Godfrey  G Olson 
Cllr Anne M Winstanley  
Deputies: Cllr Mike Hughes   
  Cllr A Broadhurst  

Townhill Park Residents' Association 

(1) 

 

Mrs Diane Sebon  
Deputy:  

Test Valley Borough Council (1) 

 

Cllr Jim S Neal 
Deputy:  Cllr Nigel Anderdon 

Southampton Action for Access (1) 

 

Mr Geoff Wilkinson  
Deputy: Louis Slack   
 

Winchester City Council (2) 

 

Cllr Mike Southgate 
Mr Robert Tice(WAG) 
Deputy: Cllr James Byrnes   

 Dr Keith Smith  (WAG) 

"High Flyers" (1) 

 

No-one appointed  
Possibly a member from the LEP  

West End Parish Council (1) 

 

Cllr Anne Mortimer   
Deputy: 

Flybe (1) 

 

tba 
 

Bishopstoke Parish Council (1) 

 

Cllr Geoff Harris 

Deputy: Cllr Sue Toher 

 

Servisair (1) 

 

Ms Gay Roberts 

Deputy: 

 

39



-16- 
 

Hampshire Chamber of 

Commerce and Industry (1) 

 

Mr Stewart Dunn  
Deputy: Denise Barlow 

South West Trains (1) 

 

Mr Phil Dominey 

Deputy: Danny Maile  

 

Southampton International Airport Ltd 

(1) 

Mr Dave Lees  
Deputy: Jan Halliday  

 

National Air Traffic Services (1) 
Daryl Heaselgrave   

Deputy   

Co-opted Members (max 3) 

 

 

Hon Secretary  
 
Richard Ward  
 

Officers who attend (other than airport 

staff)  

Karin James EBC 

Tony Wright EBC 

Neil Scott EBC 

Mark Beeston EBC 

Rosie Zambra SCC 

Dave Ingram WCC 

 

 

40



-17- 
 

 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT  

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  MEMBERS 
 
 

Participation  

 
Members will be given an induction pack which will include a copy of the Constitution 
which includes how the committee works. To ensure the effective operation of the 
committee there is an expectation of commitment from all members to participate 
actively in the work and discussions of the committee.  
 
To help with this, we have  Code of Conduct below that can be used to ensure 
members understand what is expected of them, as well as the standards of behaviour 
expected of consultative committee members. 
 

Code of Conduct  
 
� Respect: Committee members should treat each other with respect and courtesy 

at all times.  

� Commitment: Committee members should dedicate sufficient time to prepare for 
and attend meetings, including seeking advice and views from others in their 
organisation where appropriate.  

� Conflicts of Interest: Members should identify and declare any conflicts of interest 
(actual, potential or perceived), particularly where members do not represent an 
organisation. 

� Participation: Members should participate fully in meetings. They should listen to 
what others have to say and keep an open mind while contributing constructively 
to discussions. Actions assigned to members should be fulfilled in a timely 
manner and progress reported back on at the next meeting.  

� Openness and Accountability: Members should be open and accountable to each 
other and the organisations and communities they represent about their work on 
the committee.  

 

 

41



-18- 
 42



-19- 
 

Appendix 1 

Supplementary information regarding the Flying Controls Agreement and the 

Technical Working Group  

All but a very small part of Southampton International Airport falls within the borough 

of Eastleigh. As such, the Borough Council is responsible for processing any 

planning applications relating to the airport and for dealing with issues associated 

with aircraft noise, air and ground pollution and traffic generation. In dealing with 

these matters, the Borough Council must recognise that the impacts of the airport 

extend beyond the borough boundaries, to the residents of adjoining authority areas 

and to the economy of the whole of south Hampshire. 

When the planning application for the replacement of the airport terminal facilities 

was considered in the early 1990s, the Borough Council secured an agreement with 

the owners of the airport under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 

which imposes some restrictions on day-to-day operational activity at the airport. The 

agreement remains valid and enforceable. 

The Flying Controls Agreement, as it has become known, which was unique at the 

time, secured: 

- Restrictions precluding the extension of the runway. 

- The closure of the airport during night hours (23.00 to 06.00, 07.30 on 

Sundays), other than for a small number of exceptional movements. 

- Restrictions preventing the use of the airport by the noisiest aircraft types and 

limiting the number of training movements and helicopter movements. 

- Arrangements to agree ‘noise preferred routes’ (designed to minimise noise 

disturbance to the occupiers of residential property) and arrangements for 

monitoring operational activity and noise levels. 

Many of these measures have in more recent years become everyday obligations on 

airport operators elsewhere. The preparation of a ‘noise action plan’, for example, is 

now a Government requirement on the operators of all but the smallest airfields. 

The monitoring of operational activity for the previous four-month period, required by 

the Flying Controls Agreement, is reported to each meeting of the Consultative 

Committee. Similarly, the annual monitoring of noise levels, by means of modelled 

noise contours, is also reported regularly to the Committee. 

The Airport Consultative Committee is supported by the Technical Working Group. 

The Group, chaired by the Managing Director of the airport, is made up of the 

Chairman of the Consultative Committee, officers of Eastleigh, Southampton and 

Winchester councils, representatives of National Air Traffic Services (air traffic 

43



-20- 
 

control) and Flybe (the major airline using the airport) and technical staff of 

Southampton Airport. The Technical Working Group meets as required ahead of 

meetings of the Consultative Committee to review and advise on the technical 

context for issues to be presented to the Committee, particularly but not exclusively 

in respect of noise and aircraft routeing.  

 

Tony Wright, Principal Planning Policy Officer, Eastleigh Borough Council 

44



-21- 
 

 

Appendix 2 Glossary of Terms* 

AGGLOMERATION  The Environmental Noise (England) 
Regulations 2006: An agglomeration is an area 
having a population in excess of 100,000 
persons and a population density equal to or 
greater than 500 people per square km and 
identified in Regulations by the Secretary of 
State. For the first round of mapping to be 
reported in 2007, the population threshold is 
250,000.  

ANCON 2.3  Aircraft Noise Contour Model version 2.3. The 
UK civil aircraft noise contour model produced 
and maintained by ERCD.  

CAA  Civil Aviation Authority.  

Directorate of Airspace Policy  The Directorate of Airspace Policy (DAP), a 
Group within the Civil Aviation Authority (CAA), 
which sits alongside the groups responsible for 
Safety Regulation, Economic Regulation and 
Consumer Protection. The Directorate is 
staffed by civilian and military experts with 
experience of commercial, business, 
recreational and military aviation. The 
Government requires the Directorate of 
Airspace Policy to secure the most efficient 
use of airspace consistent with the safe 
operation of aircraft and the expeditious flow of 
air traffic whilst taking into consideration the 
requirements of operations and owners of all 
classes of aircraft. Additionally environmental 
implications and national security issues must 
be considered. The Directorate is also required 
to provide the UK Meteorological Authority and 
Regulation for Aeronautical Information 
services.  

dB(A)  A unit of sound pressure level, adjusted in 
accordance with the A weighting scale, which 
takes into account the increased sensitivity of 
the human ear at some frequencies.  

Decibel (dB)  The decibel (dB) is a logarithmic unit of 
measurement that expresses the magnitude of 
a physical quantity relative to a specified or 
implied reference level. Its logarithmic nature 
allows very large or very small ratios to be 
represented by a convenient number. Being a 
ratio, it is a dimensionless unit. Decibels are 
used for a wide variety of measurements 
including acoustics, and for audible sound A-
weighted decibels (dBA) are commonly used.  

Defra  Department for Environment Food and Rural 
Affairs (UK Government).  

DfT  Department for Transport (UK Government).  

45



-22- 
 

ECAC  European Civil Aviation Conference.  

ERCD  Environmental Research and Consultancy 
Department of the Civil Aviation Authority.  

FLOPC  Southampton Airport forum including Airline 
Partners, Aircraft operators and NATS  

GNSS  Geo Navigation Satellite System - a satellite 
base global positioning system for aircraft  

ICAO  International Civil Aviation Organization.  

LAeq,16h  The A-weighted average sound level over the 
16 hour period of 0700 – 2300.  

Lday  The A-weighted average sound level over the 
12 hour day period of 0700 - 1900 hours.  

Lden  The day, evening, night level, Lden is a 
logarithmic composite of the Lday, Levening, 
and Lnight levels.  

Leq  Equivalent sound level of aircraft noise in dBA, 
often called equivalent continuous sound level.  

Levening  The A-weighted average sound level over the 
4 hour evening period of 1900 - 2300 hours. 
An artificial 5 dB(A) weighting is added.  

Lnight  The A-weighted average sound level over the 
8 hour night period of 2300 - 0700 hours. An 
artificial 10 dB(A)  

 

*Taken from Southampton Airport Noise Action Plan 2013 - 2018  

46



-23- 
 47



-24- 
 

 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT  

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE  MEMBERS 
 

 

Participation  

 
Members will be given an induction pack which will include a copy of the 
Constitution which includes how the committee works. To ensure the effective 
operation of the committee there is an expectation of commitment from all 
members to participate actively in the work and discussions of the committee.  
 
To help with this, we have  Code of Conduct below that can be used to ensure 
members understand what is expected of them, as well as the standards of 
behaviour expected of consultative committee members. 
 

Code of Conduct  
 
� Respect: Committee members should treat each other with respect and 

courtesy at all times.  

� Commitment: Committee members should dedicate sufficient time to 
prepare for and attend meetings, including seeking advice and views from 
others in their organisation where appropriate.  

� Conflicts of Interest: Members should identify and declare any conflicts of 
interest (actual, potential or perceived), particularly where members do not 
represent an organisation. 

� Participation: Members should participate fully in meetings. They should 
listen to what others have to say and keep an open mind while contributing 
constructively to discussions. Actions assigned to members should be 
fulfilled in a timely manner and progress reported back on at the next 
meeting.  

� Openness and Accountability: Members should be open and accountable to 
each other and the organisations and communities they represent about 
their work on the committee.  

  

 

Signed: ……………………………………………………………………………..    Date: ……………………………….. 

 

Representing:………………………………………………………………….. 

48



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

1 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Friday 17 October 2014 

 
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT – 

MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT 
 

Report of the Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy,  
Eastleigh Borough Council 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that this summary of airport operational activity for the May 
to August period of 2014 be noted.  
 

___________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY  
 
This report summarises the statistics of operational activity at Southampton 
Airport for the May to August period of 2014 provided by Southampton Airport 
in accordance with the Flying Controls Agreement between the owners of the 
airport and the Borough Council. The report also compares the figures with 
those for the previous year. 
 

____________________________________________ 
 

 
Aircraft Movements: May to August 2014  

 

1. The monitoring statistics for this period are set out in the attached 
Appendix prepared by Southampton Airport. The total number of aircraft 
movements during this four-month period was 15,408. This was 126 
more than the total over the same period in 2013, an increase of 0.82%.  

2. The monitoring statistics show the first increase in the number of aircraft 
movements recorded at Southampton Airport in this reporting period 
since 2010 when the number of movements recorded was 17,876.   

3. The small increase in the number of aircraft movements accompanies a 
greater increase in passenger numbers as reported by the Managing 
Director which reflects the higher passenger loadings achieved by the 
airlines.  

4. There were no training movements during this four-month period and 
none were recorded in the same period in 2013. 

Agenda Item 9

49



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

2 

5. Helicopter movements totalled 106 during this period, one more than in 
the same period last year and at the upper end of the usual range for the 
number of such movements. 

6. The Appendices set out, as usual, the number of movements each 
month to the north and south of the airport. The figures show the close 
balance of the total number of movements at each end of the runway. 
They illustrate the influence of weather conditions on the direction of 
aircraft movements, with a higher than usual number of landing 
movements from the south and corresponding take-off movements to the 
north (runway 02) in July. This contrasts particularly sharply with the 
number of movements on runway 20, landing from the north and taking 
off to the south, in August.    

 Movements During Night Hours: May to August 2014 

7. There were 14 aircraft movements during night hours over this four-
month period. The Flying Controls Agreement allows for up to 10 night 
movements in any calendar month, in addition to ‘exempt’ movements 
attributable to weather conditions or defined emergencies directly 
affecting that movement. 

8. Of these night movements, three were exempt from the restrictions in the 
Flying Controls Agreement, each for a different reason as set out in the 
Appendix. The number of non-exempt movements was well within the 
limits set out in the Flying Controls Agreement and all of the night 
movements took place within 30 minutes of the night closure period.      

 Conclusions 

9. Monitoring continues to show airport operational activity to be well within 
the terms of the Flying Controls Agreement and shows some growth in 
activity for the first time in several years. 

 
PAUL RAMSHAW 

Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy 
 
 
Contact:  Tony Wright 
Tel:  023 8068 8245 
Email:  tony.wright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Date:  8 October 2014 
 
Appendices attached: one 

50



EBC Flying Control Statistics

May - August 2014

Total Aircraft Movements
Total Movements Day Movements Night Movements

Aircraft Type May Jun Jul Aug May Jun Jul Aug May Jun Jul Aug

Non CH3 Jet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training Movements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Helicopter 24 44 26 12 24 44 26 12 0 0 0 0

Fourth Schedule 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All other aircraft 3691 3751 3991 3869 3686 3745 3991 3866 5 6 0 3

Totals 3715 3795 4017 3881 3710 3789 4017 3878 5 6 0 3

Total Night Movements - Summary

Month Exempt Month Total Cum Total 2014 3

Total Movements Non Exempt Non Exempt

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Night Exemptions

Date Time A/D Type

07-May-14 23:07 A E95

24-Jun-14 23:17 A E95

26-Aug-14 23:21 A E95

Night Movements
Date Time A/D Type

10-May-14 23:07 A E95

23-May-14 23:30 A E95

24-May-14 23:03 A E95

31-May-14 23:03 A E95

07-Jun-14 23:09 A E95

14-Jun-14 23:19 A E95

22-Jun-14 23:10 D AT7

28-Jun-14 23:14 A E95

29-Jun-14 23:04 A DH4

02-Aug-14 23:19 A E95

30-Aug-14 23:09 A E95

Reason

Reg Reason

Reg

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

1

1

0

1

5

6

0

3

5

4

0

2

7

12

12

14

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

GFBEA     

GFBEJ     

GFBEI     

GISLI     

when it is 2300 - 0730Hrs (Local time).

Night is defined as 2300 - 0600Hrs (Local time), except on Saturday pm to Sunday am

All Times are local time

Delayed Schedule

ATC StrikesGFBEB     

GFBEI     

GJECM     

GFBEG     

GFBEG     

Tech Delay

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

GFBEI     

GFBEB     Weather at destination

GFBEA     

GFBEA     

GFBEI     

51



EBC Flying Control Statistics

Runway Use (All Movements) - Appendix 6a

2014

May Jun Jul Aug

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 682 798 1121 539

Arr Runway 20 1175 1126 893 1370

  

 

To/From the South    

Dep Runway 20 1175 1098 888 1402

Arr Runway 02 683 773 1115 570

  

    

Total Movements 3715 3795 4017 3881

   

   

Runway Use (Air Transport Movements) - Appendix 6b

2006

May Jun Jul Aug

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 608 688 993 486

Arr Runway 20 1024 971 776 1238

May Jun Jul Aug

To/From the South

Dep Runway 20 1029 951 760 1268

Arr Runway 02 609 663 970 515

    

Totals Movements 3270 3273 3499 3507

    

 

52



EBC Flying Control Statistics
Arrivals & Departures from the same runway direction by main types

of commercial aircraft - APPENDIX 6c.

To/From the North May Jun Jul Aug

Aerospatiale ATR Series 84 78 83 83

British Aerospace Jetstream 31 85 96 72 79

British Aerospace Jetstream 41 60 64 65 54

De Havilland Dash 8 Series 1179 1202 1251 1189

Embraer 170 Series 5 5 4 4

Embraer 190 Series 126 144 168 150

Mk III Trislander 110 103 129 166
Saab 2000 0 0 1 0

Total 1649 1692 1773 1725

To/From the South May Jun Jul Aug

Aerospatiale ATR Series 84 88 89 85

British Aerospace Jetstream 31 81 100 74 75

British Aerospace Jetstream 41 56 64 65 54

De Havilland Dash 8 Series 1167 1145 1203 1204

Embraer 170 Series 5 5 4 6

Embraer 190 Series 144 141 163 178

Mk III Trislander 114 107 139 186
Saab 2000 0 0 1 0

Total 1651 1650 1738 1788

Runway use by non commercial/military aircraft - APPENDIX 6d

To/From the North May Jun Jul Aug

0 0 0 0C130 (Lockheed Hercules)

53



54

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes 27 June 2014

	3 Airport Managing Director's Report
	4 Member Code of Conduct and Induction pack (DRAFT)  - Richard Ward
	9 Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement
	Flying Controls statistics May - Aug 2014


